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CORPORATE MISSION
LRED

Backed by an established corporate track record, technological excellence and strong mergers
and acquisitions capabilities, SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. envisages itself as a leading
operator and investor in the environment industry in the People’s Republic of China by adhering
to the development model of integrating industry and finance. In the pursuit of company growth,
we remain committed to protecting the planet, conserving the environment and preserving
natural resources.
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SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (“SIIC Environment” or the “Company”, stock code: BHK. SG,
807. HK, and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)) is a top-tier integrated player in China’s
water and environmental markets. It is engaged in wastewater treatment, water supply, sludge
treatment, solid waste incineration and other environment related businesses. Headquartered in
Singapore and listed on the Mainboard of SGX-ST, the Company successfully launched on the
Mainboard of SEHK in 2018. Being the controlling shareholder of SIIC Environment, Shanghai
Industrial Holdings Limited (“SIHL", SEHK stock code: 363. HK) was established in 1996,
with infrastructure, real estate and consumer products as the core businesses. China Energy
Conservation and Environmental Protection Group (“CECEP”), an important strategic investor
of the Company, is a state-owned enterprise mainly engaged in energy conservation and
environmental protection, which was reorganized and established in 2010 with the approval of
the State Council. SIIC Environment has shown tremendous growth and continued to increase its
market share in China’s environmental market.

SIIC Environment is an active investor and operator in the environmental protection industry,
with an operating history of more than 15 years in China. Currently, it boasts an overall portfolio
of about 250 wastewater treatment and water supply projects, solid waste incineration projects
and sludge treatment projects across 20 provinces, municipalities, autonomous regions and
special administrative region in China, namely Shandong, Guangdong, Hubei, Hunan, Jiangsu,
Shanghai, Zhejiang, Jiangxi, Anhui, Fujian, Guangxi, Ningxia, Henan, Liaoning, Inner Mongolia,
Shanxi, Sichuan, Jilin, Heilongjiang and Macau.

Leveraging on the Group's distinctive strategic positioning and business model, SIIC
Environment will continue to expand its business in water and solid waste treatment and
proactively explore opportunities in other environmental-related markets such as industrial
wastewater treatment, seawater desalination, sludge treatment and disposal, soil remediation,
renewable energy, water treatment technology and pollution prevention. The Group is
committed to expanding its market share, increasing its scale and efficiency, and consolidating
its leading position in China’s water and environmental protection industry.
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BUSINESS STRUCTURE
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Water Treatment and Supply
KK RE

Central (Wuhan Business Unit)
Erh (HED )

South (Nanfang Business Unit)
ZE¥ (BMADH)

North (Shandong Business Unit)
ik (LR D)

Northeast (Longjiang Business Unit)
Rl (I H)

East (Fudan Business Unit)
ER (RS

Ranhill (Industrial Wastewater Business Unit)
BE (T£5k2H)

Waste Incineration
EREEE

4 SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SEXRRERERAR



PROJECT LOCATION MAP
HEAfE

ongjiangiBU

AL .'
eI R

Wu'hg n
RiE7

BU
i

Waste Incineration projects

ElREEEIRA

Interim Report 2025 FH1 %5 & 5



OVERVIEW OF MAJOR PROJECTS

FERE-H
&/HBY/
BiRE/
Fik 98 RHTRE HE&E HERE B 2 5 (1) FRiGHE 2
Provinces/
municipalities/
autonomous
regions/special
Business administrative Daily Capacity Effective
No. Units regions Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests
1 BE N IHEE/ NERBERERSK KRR 50,000 60.0%
R (—H)ER
Ranhill Jiangxi Jiangxi Province Nanchang Xiaolan WWT
Economic Development Zone WWTP
Project 2nd Phase
2 A ER BINTEAKE R RO —— 5 KRR 200,000 100.0%
LAERETIRIER
Nanfang Guangdong Huizhou City Meihu Water Purification Center  WWT
1st and 2nd Phases and the Advanced
Treatment Project
3 mA Ex EMTEHKEF RO IRER KGR 100,000 100.0%
Nanfang Guangdong Huizhou City Meihu Water Purification Center  WWT
Project 3rd Phase
4 mh ER FHn KR 2 B2 A B KRR 55,000 100.0%
Nanfang Guangdong Pinghu WWTP Project (Expansion) WWT
5 2] BEX s kR ERER KGR 50,000 100.0%
Nanfang Guangdong Pudixia WWTP Project WWT
6 A ER BREEKRIERER KRR 50,000 100.0%
Nanfang Guangdong Egongling WWTP Project WWT
7 A ER EETKEER_HER KRR 100,000 100.0%
Nanfang Guangdong Henggang WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT
8 M B BAAFSKRERETELER KRR 69,000 60.0%
Nanfang Macau Macau Taipa WWTP O&M Project WWT
9 A i I BARSKERIE R KRR 200,000 90.0%
Nanfang Guangxi Beihai Hongkan WWTP Project WWT
0 #BA il WS KRR —HEE AR 80,000 100.0%
Nanfang Hunan Chenzhou City WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT
11 2l il WMmE = MaKEEBHEEER 5K R 160,000 100.0%
Nanfang Hunan Chenzhou City Second and Fourth WWTP WWT
Projects
12 RE sl BEAMER S KEER - HTRER 5K R 125,000 75.3%
Wuhan Hubei Huangshi City Cihu WWTP Project 2nd WWT
Phase
13 RE sl ETKRERE R 5K R 400,000 80.0%
Wuhan Hubei Hanxi WWTP Project WWT
4 RE iple ERTKRERYUERIRIER 5K R 200,000 80.0%
Wuhan Hubei Hanxi WWTP Expansion Project WWT
15 RE sl BUE R E RS KR — 8 5K R 55,000 100.0%
Wuhan Hubei Wuhan City Huangpi District Panlongcheng ~ WWT
WWTP Project 2nd Phase
6 SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L EE$BEERERAT



4/E8H/

BiRE/
Fi o8 RATRE HERW HERE B 2 ¢ (1) FritiE &
Provinces/
municipalities/
autonomous
regions/special
Business administrative Daily Capacity Effective
No. Units regions Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests
6 HE E RINTERKEER—HER KRR 50,000 100.0%
Wuhan Ningxia Yinchuan City Fifth WWTP Project 1st Phase ~ WWT
17 HE EE RINTERKEER — w2 KRR 50,000 100.0%
RiRENEER
Wuhan Ningxia Yinchuan City Fifth WWTP Project 2nd Phase  WWT
(Expansion, Upgrade and Reconstruction)
18 R ER REM ARG ESSKEREEAR KRR 100,000 75.5%
Shandong Guangdong Dongguan City Dalang Songshanhu WWT
Southern WWTP Project
19 I1):3 ER REMABESB KRR —HIRER JTKRE 60,000 75.5%
Shandong Guangdong Dongguan City Shijie Shayao WWTP Project ~ WWT
1st Phase
20 1)1 ER REmBEERSKEER _HER KRR 50,000 75.5%
Shandong Guangdong Dongguan City Fenggang Yantian WWTP WWT
Project 2nd Phase
21 IR BE REFANT KGR (ZH)RR KRR 105,000 75.5%
Shandong Liaoning Dalian Quanshui River WWTP Project 2nd WWT
Phase
22 IR BE RERNT 5K GRIERIRR KRR 60,000 86.5%
Shandong Liaoning Dalian Lingshui River WWTP Project WWT
23 1) EE REZRESKEERER KRR 80,000 75.5%
Shandong Liaoning Dalian Laohutan WWTP Project WWT
24 W& W& ENmEkEERIER EKEE 100,000 75.5%
Shandong Shandong Dezhou City WWTP Project WWT
25 W& R AR RMERAEEKEERER EYN B 100,000 75.5%
Shandong Shandong Weifang High Technology Industrial WWT
Development District WWTP Project
26 ITES W& M KRR BRI R KRR 200,000 75.5%
Shandong Shandong Weifang City WWTP Project (Expansion) WWT
27 1) IR HTLBISKR R BRI KRR 60,000 75.5%
JESIEE —H
Shandong Shandong Weifang City Shawo WWTP Resumption and ~ WWT
Upgrading Project 1st Phase
28 IT):3 +g BHE TKRERER =4 KRR 60,000 87.8%
Shandong Shanghai Qingpu Second WWTP Project 3rd Phase WWT
29 1)1 +g BHE D TKRERER BROS KRR 60,000 87.8%
Shandong Shanghai Qingpu Second WWTP Project 4th Phase WWT
(Expansion)
30 B®I BT B3935 7K B — 4 KRR 50,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Acheng WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT
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OVERVIEW OF MAJOR PROJECTS

IEHE-R

&/HBY/
BiRE/
Fik 98 RHTRE HE&E HEHE B RE (W) FrisiE s
Provinces/
municipalities/
autonomous
regions/special
Business administrative Daily Capacity Effective
No. Units regions Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests
31 E REL B350 7K — 2 KRR 50,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Acheng WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT
32 B BEIL TESKE KGR 150,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Pingfang WWTP Project WWT
33 Bl BEI BRBAXTKE KGR 325,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Harbin Taiping WWTP Project WWT
4 BI BEI REREX SRR AR 325,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Harbin Wenchang WWTP Project WWT
% I REIL NERETRE AR 50,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Wenchang Expansion Project WWT
3  FEIL FEL E&I5KE KRR 100,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Xinyi WWTP Project WWT
37 EI REIL B 57K — U3 50,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Jixi WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT
38  EII BT KB 5K R 50,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Jixi WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT
39 EI BRI 5 KR =5 5K R 50,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Jixi WWTP Project 3rd Phase WWT
40  FEI BRI EARETRE 5K 5K R 100,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Jiamusi East WWTP Project WWT
41 #I BRI EZN TR 5K R 100,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Jiamusi West WWTP Project WWT
42  FEI BRI BT K — 8 5K R 100,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Mudanjiang WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT
43 FEII BRI BT = 8 KRR 100,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Mudanjiang WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT
4 FEI BRI WISk — 8 KRR 50,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Shuangyashan WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT
4 EI BEI BI85 7KE — K2 50,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Shuangyashan WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT
4 BT RAEL ELIEN KGR 50,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Zhaodong WWTP Project WWT
47 EI FEL #5 5 7K B P KRR 50,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Hegang WWTP Project (Wes) WWT
48 I FEL FEAREBREAR K2 50,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Pingfang Landfill Leachate Project WWT
49 #E ER REMRZZMBOT— ZHEA K2 150,000 35.5%
Fudan Guangdong Dongguan City Chang'an Sanzhou BOT WWT
Project 1st and 2nd Phases
50 B A EETRIREESKEETR aKEE 100,000 69.1%
Fudan Henan Nanyang City Baihenan WWTP Project WWT
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4/E8H/

BiRE/
FiE 28 RATHE HHAE HERE B 2 ¢ (1) FritiE &
Provinces/
municipalities/
autonomous
regions/special
Business administrative Daily Capacity Effective
No. Units regions Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests
51 B8 iipid RN kRER—HER KRR 50,000 92.2%
Fudan Hubei Suizhou City Cheng Nan WWTP Project 1st ~ WWT
Phase
52 #&EB LE EHTRLEERERKEEER KRR 100,000 50.8%
Fudan Jiangsu Wuxi Huishan Economic Development Zone ~ WWT
WWTP Project
53 EE I8 FERNTKEERER KRR 100,000 92.2%
Fudan Shanghai Fengxian West WWTP Project WWT
54  %&B +g EERITKEER - HRZER KRR 50,000 92.2%
Fudan Shanghai Fengxian West WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT
(Expansion)
55  #&B +g EERMTKEER=HEEZER KRR 50,000 92.2%
Fudan Shanghai Fengxian West WWTP Project 3rd Phase WWT
(Expansion)
56  #&E g EERKEERIS5KER KRR 100,000 92.2%
Fudan Shanghai Fengxian West WWTP Project 4th Phase WWT
57 (L] T Rk ONER) REF RSB -4 KRR 60,000 69.1%
Fudan Zhejiang Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Water Purification WWT
Plant Project 1st Phase Batch 1
58 (el iijpan RTONER) REF RSB KRR 60,000 69.1%
Fudan Zhejiang Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Water Purification WWT
Plant Project 1st Phase Batch 2
59 &R HOT Rk CNER) BT KRERRS KRR 75,000 69.1%
PuE=H TR
Fudan Zhejiang Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Municipal WWTP WWT
Project 3rd Phase (Upgrade and
Reconstruction)
60 EE HT R C(NER) BISKEERIER KRR 50,000 69.1%
WE=H(CRR)BRIR
Fudan Zhejiang Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Municipal WWTP WWT
Expansion Project 3rd Phase Second
Stage (Upgrade and Reconstruction)
61 e L BERMMEF R IKRER - RERTR KRR 60,000 64.5%
Fudan Zhejiang Ningbo Hangzhouwan New District WWTP WWT
Project 1st Phase (Expansion)
62 €8 ipan THmRATKEERER =ZH—-B& KGR 80,000 92.2%
Fudan Zhejiang Pinghu City Eastern WWTP Project 3rd WWT
Phase first stage
63  EE HiT FHHRAKGEERER BRE AKEE 50,000 92.2%
Fudan Zhejiang Pinghu City Eastern Preprocess Treatment WWT

Project
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OVERVIEW OF MAJOR PROJECTS

IEHE-R

&/HBY/
BiRE/
Fik 98 RHTRE HE&E HEHE B RE (W) FrisiE s
Provinces/
municipalities/
autonomous
regions/special
Business administrative Daily Capacity Effective
No. Units regions Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests
64 EE iipan ABBRTISKRER KRR 80,000 100.0%
Fudan Zhejiang Tiantai County WWTP Project WWT
65 92 b d AIkKEFELERR fHK 80,000 100.0%
Wuhan Hubei Qianchuan Water Plant O&M Project WS
66 HE b d AR L Bk g R T iE fHK 60,000 100.0%
Wuhan Hubei Qianchuan Water Plant 5th Phase WS
Reconstruction and Expansion Project
67 BE bl e BLE T & R 3T EOH K B — H oK 100,000 100.0%
Wuhan Hubei Wuhan City Huangpi District Xinwuhu Water ~ WS
Plant 1st Phase
68 HE 3t BLE T & R 3T B K B = 5 ok 150,000 100.0%
Wuhan Hubei Wuhan City Huangpi District Xinwuhu Water ~ WS
Plant 2nd Phase
69 HE 1Y} SIX ANk T2 fHK 55,000 100.0%
Wuhan Shanxi Water Diversion Project from Wenshui to WS
Pingchuan
70 918 BEI HT K ok 250,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Mudanjiang WS Project WS
71 #iI EEI fEARHT K oK 210,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Jiamusi WS Project WS
72 WW® il #i B I KB B @R 1K oK 120,000 90.0%
Shandong Hunan Yiyang City Municipal WS Project WS
(Kuailongshan Water Plant)
73 WW® il gl MM KRR £ =K~ oK 100,000 90.0%
Shandong Hunan Yiyang City Municipal WS Project Third WS
Water Plant 1st Phase
74 1) il #®E IR KAR S KR8 (ER) fHK 100,000 90.0%
Shandong Hunan Yiyang City Municipal WS Project Third WS
Water Plant 2nd Phase (Expansion)
75 WE il i B3 VAL 4 7KO8 B 38 K oK 100,000 90.0%
Shandong Hunan Yiyang City Municipal WS Project Fourth WS
Water Plant
76 WW® IR EymRERMEKER YN 60,000 26.2%
Shandong Shandong Weifang City Hanting WS Project WS
7 W® IR Ey M RAOER (BRAKEIER) oK 120,000 51.3%
Shandong Shandong Weifang City Municipal WS Project (Bailanghe = WS
Water Plant Project)
78 WX IR Ey M RKOER (RHEKEER) oK 200,000 51.3%
Shandong Shandong Weifang City Municipal WS Project (Gaoxin WS
Water Distribution Plant Project)
10 SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L §E$BEEERERAT



4/E8H/

BiRE/
FiE 28 RATHE HHAE HERE B 2 ¢ (1) FritiE &
Provinces/
municipalities/
autonomous
regions/special
Business administrative Daily Capacity Effective
No. Units regions Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests
79 EHA BR BT KRERBEKER ik B /A A K 50,000 100.0%
Nanfang Guangdong Henggang Reclaimed Water Plant Project RWT/ Reclaimed
water
80 N £y i AT K PN EFEEEYS 50,000 58.0%
Longjiang Heilongjiang Mudanjiang WS Project RWT/ Reclaimed

water
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
g 4ol

| FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE GROUP
Capital and Equity attributable to owners of the Company

The Company had a total of 2,575,665,726 shares in issue as at 30 June 2025 (31 December
2024: 2,575,665,726).

Equity attributable to owners of the Company was RMB10,775,848,000 as at 30 June 2025 (31
December 2024: RMB10,635,069,000).

Indebtedness

As at 30 June 2025, the total borrowings of the Group including bank loans and other
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB22,977,454,000 (31 December 2024:
RMB22,338,880,000), of which 44.8% (31 December 2024: 36.1%) were unsecured credit
facilities. 99.7% of the total borrowings are in Renminbi (31 December 2024: 99.7%). 11.0% of
the borrowings are at fixed rate (31 December 2024: 22.4%).

Capital commitment

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had capital expenditures of RMB338,892,000 (31 December 2024:
RMB546,795,000). The Group had sufficient internal resources and/or capital obtained through
loan markets for the finance of its capital expenditures.

Bank balances and short-term investments

As at 30 June 2025, bank balances and short-term investments held by the Group amounted to
RMB4,012,387,000 (31 December 2024: RMB2,918,241,000) and RMB9,797,000 (31 December
2024: RMB10,061,000), respectively. The proportions of Renminbi and other currencies in bank
balances were 97.7% and 2.3% (31 December 2024: 97.7% and 2.3%), respectively.

Short-term investments include investments in quoted equity securities that offer the Group
the opportunity for return through dividend income and fair value gains. They have no fixed
maturity or coupon rate. The fair value of short-term investments is based on closing quoted
market prices on the last trading day of the six months ended 30 June 2025.

While having sufficient working capital and a healthy interest cover, the Group is monitoring
the market situation and respective funding requirements on a regular basis for business
development, and will seek opportunities to optimize its capital structure should the need
arise.
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I FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy
capital ratios in relation to the nature of its industry in order to support its business and
maximise shareholder value.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which include borrowings, net cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, retained earnings and other reserves.

The Group reviews the capital structure using gearing ratio regularly. The Group manages its
capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. As
part of this review, the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital are
being considered. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, return of capital to shareholders or new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt. No major changes were made to the objectives,

Z &MIR -eMERRRFEH

R:ER
TEBEAEENIZARARRALBERNEAST
FUEHABNEALR  UXREEBREARE MR
mRREE -

(BREER) R RA

TEENEAREERERFR
RN (BRESETR

+EE %/?}%E&ZK }E
K REBBNREMEERE)

AEEFRERERE tﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi%% AEEE
BEAARRE URCEBREEHELAZ -NERB
L ZI&E@%%?MXZK&,\E%SMHF@E@H % e
AEEBBRBIARE  AREREEALBITHBRMU
RENHESSIERNREER THERBEAEE-
B E2025%6A30H IEAMEA ([HEH]) - BE - Bk

policies or processes during the six months ended 30 June 2025 (the “reporting period”). BrifE gs-
Group
%M@
30 June 2025 31 December 2024
2025%6H30H 2024%F12A31H
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARBTTR AREFT
Total borrowings ) BB 23,025,558 22,390,881
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RekReSED (4,012,387) (2,918,241)
Net debt EBFE 19,013,171 19,472,640
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARAHEBAEGER 10,775,848 10,635,069
Non-controlling interests R ES 5,626,584 5,447 441
Total equity R 16,402,432 16,082,510
Net debt/Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR RIEE ABIEER
)%%E/ & 1.76 1.83
Net debt/Total equity ERFE/ Ens 1.16 1.21

" Total borrowings comprise bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities.

) BEAERTRHAMETAREERE -

Interim Report 2025 A% 13



FINANCIAL REVIEW
W R

Currency Risk

The Group has transactional currency exposure arising from sales or purchases that are
denominated in a currency other than functional currencies of the Group entities which are
mainly RMB. The Group has sales and cost of sales denominated in the respective functional
currencies of the Group entities which are mainly RMB. Similarly, the Group’s trade receivable
and trade payable balances at the end of the reporting period have limited foreign currency
exposures as bulk of the sales and purchases are denominated in the respective functional
currencies of the Group entities which are mainly RMB. Currently, the Group has not entered
into any hedge due to the limited transactional foreign currency exposure. The board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) and management continue to closely monitor the
foreign exchange exposure to evaluate the risk from time to time and to take necessary action
if needed.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s and the Company's exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from their loans and
borrowings. The Group’s policy is to optimise interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable-
rate debts. The Board and management continue to closely monitor the interest rate risk to
evaluate the risk from time to time and will take necessary action if needed.

Interest on financial instruments subject to variable interest rates is contractually repriced
regularly. Interest on financial instruments at fixed rates is fixed until the maturity of the
instruments. The other financial instruments of the Group and the Company are not subject to
interest rate risks.

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group and the Company minimise credit risk by
dealing exclusively with counterparties of high credit rating.

The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred
due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
counterparties.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to
credit risk is the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the statements of financial position. The Group’s principal financial assets are trade and other
receivables, receivables under service concession arrangements, cash and cash equivalents
and pledged bank deposits. The amounts presented in the statement of financial position are
net of loss allowance for doubtful receivables. A loss allowance for impairment and expected
credit loss are made according to the Group’s accounting policy or where there is an
identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in the
recoverability of the cash flows.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Overall Review

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, the Group’s revenue was RMB3,177.1 million,
representing a decrease of 4.4%, as compared to RMB3,323.5 million for the same period in
2024,

Meanwhile, for the six months ended 30 June 2025, the Group’s profit for the period was
RMB553.5 million, representing an increase of 8.9%, as compared to RMB508.2 million for the
same period in 2024.

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, the profit attributable to owners of the Company was
RMB344.3 million, representing an increase of 7.1%, as compared to RMB321.4 million for the
same period in 2024.

EERARASH

BHPRGERRRAMZEKER
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B FIF - 3 Z22025F6 3308 M EAR  AEEHH
WFIEAARES535(F T 0 B2024F R Hif) A R #5.082
Bt Re.9% -

HE2025F6 A0AMANEARN  ARAHEE AE LS
WFEAARES443(E 0 BL024FFHM A RE3.214
BITER7.1% -

Revenue e A
1HFY2025 1HFY2024 Change
20255 L$5F 2024F L$F g
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 %
ARBTT ARBTT
Construction revenue BEBA 271,607 562,225 51.7%
Operating and maintenance income from service FREFFFEELHHELEERA
concession arrangements 2,122,182 1,908,809 11.2%
Financial income from service PRAEAFET B R R
concession arrangements 527,871 616,762 -14.4%
Service income ZAESHMA 119,594 101,383 18.0%
Other revenue Hir g lA 135,866 134,336 1.1%
Total At 3,177,120 3,323,515 -4.4%
Construction Revenue BaEbA

Construction revenue was RMB271.6 million in 1HFY2025, representing a decrease of 51.7%,
as compared to RMB562.2 million for the same period in 2024. The decrease in revenue was
mainly due to the basic completion of major construction projects in FY2024 and the gradual
commencement of new major construction projects are expected in 2HFY2025.

Operating and Maintenance Income from Service Concession Arrangements/Financial
Income from Service Concession Arrangements

The aggregate income was RMB2,650.1 million in 1HFY2025, representing an increase of 4.9%,
as compared to RMB2,525.6 million for the same period in 2024. The increase was due to
an overall rise in volume of water sold as a result of the commencement of operations at new
projects.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERARASH

Service Income

Service income was RMB119.6 million in 1HFY2025, representing an increase of 18.0%,
as compared to RMB101.4 million for the same period in 2024. The increase in entrusted
operation income is mainly due to the contribution of new projects of the Group.

Other Revenue

Other revenue was RMB135.9 million in 1HFY2025, representing an increase of 1.1%, as
compared to RMB134.3 million for the same period in 2024. The change in other principal
revenue was mainly due to the change in the volume of ad-hoc installation works

(B) Gross Profit (“GP”)/Gross Profit Margin (“GPM”)

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, the Group’s GP was RMB1,257.2 million, representing
a decrease of 1.6%, as compared to RMB1,277.4 million for the same period in 2024. The
decrease in GP was primarily caused by the decrease in construction revenue.

GPM was 39.6% in 1HFY2025, representing an increase of 1.2%, as compared to 38.4%
for the same period in 2024. The improvement was mainly due to the lower proportion of
construction revenue, which typically has a lower gross profit margin, and a lower unit cost
due to higher volume of water sold.

(C) Other Income

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, other income was RMB49.1 million, representing an
increase of 14.6%, as compared to RMB42.9 million for the same period in 2024. The increase
was mainly due to increase in volume of work and production not related to core business
activities.

(D) Other Gains and Losses

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, net gain was RMB5.4 million, representing an
increase of 117.7%, as compared to a net gain of RMB2.5 million for the same period in 2024.
The change was mainly due to a foreign exchange gain recorded in 2025.

(E) Selling and Distribution Costs

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, selling and distribution costs were RMB40.1 million,
representing an increase of 5.7%, as compared to RMB38.0 million for the same period in
2024. The increase was mainly due to higher repair and maintenance costs.

(F) Administrative Expenses

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, administrative expenses were RMB272.3 million,
representing an increase of 13.2%, as compared to RMB240.5 million for the same period in
2024. The increase was mainly due to an increase in costs.

(G) Finance Expenses

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, finance expenses were RMB350.1 million,
representing a decrease of 12.5%, as compared to RMB400.1 million for the same period in
2024. During the six months ended 30 June 2025, the financing structure was continuously
being optimized by the replacement of higher-interest loans with lower-interest rate RMB loans,
with the increase in financing scale, financial expenses were significantly reduced compared
with the previous six month period.
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(H) Share of Results of Associates/Share of Results of Joint Ventures

The share of results of associates and joint ventures using the equity method represents the
Group’s share of results in investments which are accounted for using equity method.

The share of results of joint ventures for the six months ended 30 June 2025 increased as
compared to the same period, mainly due to higher contribution from joint ventures.

The share of results of associates for the six months ended 30 June 2025 decreased as
compared to the same period, mainly due to lower contribution from associates.

()  Income Tax Expenses

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, income tax was RMB97.9 million, representing a
decrease of 31.9%, as compared to RMB143.7 million for the same period in 2024. The
decrease in income tax expense was due to the reversal of overprovision of income tax and
deferred tax in previous years.

(J) Current Assets

Current assets of the Group as at 30 June 2025 amounted to RMB12.06 billion, representing
an increase of 11.9%, as compared to RMB10.78 billion as at 31 December 2024. The
increase in current assets was mainly due to the rise in cash and cash equivalents and trade
receivables related to the revenue generated in the first half of 2025.

(K) Non-current Assets
Non-current assets of the Group as at 30 June 2025 amounted to RMB33.28 billion, showing
a slight decrease of 2.6%, as compared to RMB34.18 billion as at 31 December 2024. The
decrease in non-current assets was mainly due to decrease in receivables under service
concession arrangements.

(L) Current Liabilities

Current liabilities of the Group as at 30 June 2025 amounted to RMB8.09 billion, representing
a decrease of 12.7%, as compared to RMB9.26 billion as at 31 December 2024. The decrease
was primarily due to the repayment of trade and other payables and short-term borrowings.

(M) Non-current Liabilities

Non-current liabilities of the Group as at 30 June 2025 amounted to RMB20.84 billion,
representing an increase of 6.3%, as compared to RMB19.61 billion as at 31 December 2024.
The increase was mainly due to bank and other borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERARASH

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

As at 30 June 2025, the Group's cash and cash equivalents stood at RMB4.01 hillion,
representing an increase of 37.5%, as compared to RMB2.92 billion as at 31 December 2024.

Net Cash generated from Operating Activities: Net cash of RMB631.5 million was generated
from the Group's operating activities, reflecting the improvement in working capital
management during this period.

Net Cash from Investing Activities: Net cash of RMB255.5 million was generated from the
Group’s investing activities, primarily due to disposal of intangible assets related to the
concession arrangement and disposal of an associate.

Net Cash from Financing Activities: Net cash of RMB202.6 million was generated from

the Group’s financing activities, mainly due to higher net proceeds from bank and other
borrowings after offsetting the repayments.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER INFORMATION

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Interests and Short Positions of the Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and Its Associated Corporations

The interests or short positions of the directors (the “Directors”) and chief executive officer
of the Company in the shares of the Company (the “Share(s)") or underlying shares of or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”))
which will have to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK") pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or, which are required to be recorded in the register of directors’” or chief executive
officer's shareholdings kept by the Company under section 164 of the Companies Act 1967
(“Singapore Companies Act” ), or, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or which will be required to notify the Company and the SEHK
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code’) contained in Appendix C3 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK (the
“‘Hong Kong Listing Rules”), as at 30 June 2025, were as follows:

Under section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act

ERERREMEH

Eans
EFRERRTERFARRERBEEMER R
B RREEHESERKE
R2025F6A30F  ADAIEZ ([EE]) RERHAE
RADARERBEE (TEREBEDETEREFR
G ((RERMRED ) EXVE) OARERS (8K
#R)) BEROIEEZFEEREEFRAERIE
XVBETRSA BEXENEARRREBHAR A
RAF ((EFEWMXME]) ERIAR (BEREZSE
FRMEEAEOREERRERE RERAR) 3
BEERAARIREI967F (R B[R4 E) )
FIMEERZ ESTERNTERESCMAES R
KE  FAREBEERESRIERIEIDAFLAZKIL 2
EEMOERSIAR  SEARBRBHIMES TR
B ([EF#LEHHRA ) HECIHE LM RARESETESR
R HMEETA ([HEFH ) MeRRARE BB
MEZRARDT

(¥R n 35 23 B0 i) 56 1641%

Direct interests

EEER
At the beginning of At the end of
Name of Directors and companies the period the period
in which interests are held EFERERENFHEGHATEE REMm REEK
Company V\/NG]
Ordinary Shares ERR
Zhong Ming gt 1,000,000 1,000,000

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief executive officer of the Company
who held office at the end of the six months ended 30 June 2025 had any interests in shares
or debentures of the Company or of any related corporation, either at the beginning or at
the end of the six months period ended 30 June 2025. There were no changes in any of the
above-mentioned interests in the Company during the six months ended 30 June 2025.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER INFORMATION
ERERREMEH

Under Section 352 of the SFO BI85 R R & 15 5 535215
Direct interests
EEHR
Approximate
Number of percentage
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interest ordinary shares of interest
EEpa S #aKE EERE ESENESL
Zhong Ming B f|cia| interest 1,000,000 (L) 0.04%
Note: (S

(L)  denotes long position

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2025, none of the Directors or the chief executive
officer of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares,
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which had to be notified
to the Company and the SEHK pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the SEHK.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 30 June 2025, the substantial shareholders and persons or entities who had interests
or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which have been
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

L) ETEE

B EXREEI 1202556308  ANREEHERE
BITEMERNAR AL ETAAEEBEAORD - HER
DREEETFEEREES RS RO EXNVHETRSS
DEMEARRREBER MR AREES KRB E K
BB AZEF 2 BR MR EREZETAME
AR RABBIANESIAR

FERRRABMALIREHRERRAHEIRKE

2025F6A308 + RAA R R RIEE KRG f?&ﬁm?
%&%ﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬂaﬁxv%%z&sm BEXBEETAD
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ERMzERRARNEERRRALRERNT

Approximate
Number of Percentage
Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest ordinary shares of interest
TERRER 5/ HaKy EERHE ESBHEIL
S. |. Triumph Power Limited (“Triumph”) @ Beneficial interest 986,929,551 (L) 38.32%
FENBERRA(HBH Banks
S. |. Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“SII") Beneficial interest/Interest in controlled 1,152,348,026 (L) 44.74%
corporation
TERERERARAR (L RER]) Enln/ X tEER
SIHL Treasury Limited Beneficial interest 116,137,900(L) 451%
THRERXMBERARAR Banks
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited Interest in controlled corporation 1,268,485,926 (L) 49.25%

(“SIHL") 0

TRERERERAR ((LRER])O RiEAE R
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Approximate

Number of Percentage
Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest ordinary shares of interest
FERREE 5n/ REHE HERKE EREnask
Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited Interest in controlled corporation 1,268,485,926 (L) 49.25%
HERABRERAR0 REEE R
Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited (! Interest in controlled corporation 1,268,485,926 (L) 49.25%
Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited ! 5 2% Bl 45
SIIC Trading Company Limited Beneficial interest 22,358,000(L) 0.87%
TEBERESBERARY Baks
Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Interest in controlled corporation 1,290,843,926 (L) 50.12%
Limited (“SIIC")
TEEX(RE)ARAR(LEDO RELEER
China Energy Conservation Beneficial interest 223,712,917 (L) 8.69%
& Environmental Protection (Hong Kong) Investment
Co., Limited (“CECEPHK") @
REERIRR (BB REGB AR ([hEiRe (BE) )0  EHgR
China Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection  Interest in controlled corporation 223,712,917 (L) 8.69%
Group (“CECEP”) @
mEERRREB AR AR ([hEiRE]) @ REAEER
Value Partners Limited (“VPL") © Interest in controlled corporation 7,524,940 (L) 0.29%
ERACERNA((HR])O RELEER
Value Partners Hong Kong Limited Beneficial interest/Interest in controlled 231,600,920 (L) 8.99%
(“VPLHK") ® corporation
BEESEREAARAR((ERER)O EnlEn/ X rERER
Value Partners Group Limited (“VPGL”) © Interest in controlled corporation 231,600,920 (L) 8.99%

BEEEARAR((EEKE])O

REEE R
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ERERREMEH

Notes:

Each of SIIC, which is controlled by the Shanghai Municipal People’'s Government (through its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited, SIIC Capital (B.V.1.)
Limited, SIIC Trading Company Limited, Shanghai Industrial Financial Holdings (Hong Kong)
Company Limited and SIIC CM Development Limited, holds more than 20% of the issued
and paid-up share capital of SIHL, which owns all the issued and paid-up share capital
of SlI, which in turn owns all the issued and paid-up share capital of Triumph. In addition,
SIHL owns all the issued and paid-up share capital of SIHL Treasury Limited. As such, SIIC,
Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited, SIHL and SlI are deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Triumph and SIHL Treasury Limited (excluding SlI).

Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited is directly interested in approximately 47.77% of the
total issued share capital of SIHL and is indirectly interested in approximately 7.36% of the
total issued capital of SIHL through its wholly-owned subsidiary SIIC Capital (B.V.1.) Limited.
Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited is directly interested in 100% of
the total issued share capital of Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited. In addition, SIIC is
interested in approximately 63% of the total issued share capital of SIHL through its directly
and indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries. Therefore, each of the SIIC, Shanghai Industrial
Investment Treasury Company Limited and Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited is deemed
to be interested in a total of 1,290,843,926 Shares by virtue of their interests in SIHL.

CECEPHK is deemed interested in the shares held through account of BOCI Securities
Limited in CCASS Depository. BOCI Securities Limited is the agency of CECEPHK. CECEP is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by CECEPHK as CECEP owns the entire issued
share capital of CECEPHK.

VPGL is deemed to be interested in the Shares via its 100% ownership in VPLHK, which in
turn 100% owns VPL. VPLHK is directly interested in 224,075,980 Shares and is deemed
interested in 7,524,940 Shares via its 100% ownership in VPL

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other relevant
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall

to be

disclosed to the Company under the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which

would be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO as at 30 June 2025.
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Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 30 June 2025, there were 6,360 (30 June 2024: 6,232) employees in the Group. Total
employee benefits expenses of the Group (including Directors’ fee) for six months ended 30
June 2025 were approximately RMB435.6 million (30 June 2024: approximately RMB380.4
million). Employee remuneration packages are determined based on each employee’s
qualifications, experience, position and seniority. The Group also provides other employee
benefits including medical and life insurance, and grants discretionary incentive bonuses to
eligible employees based on their performance and the Group’s results of operations.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities

During the six months ended 30 June 2025, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities (including sale of treasury
shares, if any). Furthermore, the Company did not hold any treasury shares (as defined under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules) as at 30 June 2025.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this interim report, the Company does not have other plans for material
investments and capital assets.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is measured by the total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents (“Net
Debts”) divided by total equity. Total borrowings comprise bank and other borrowings and
lease liabilities. As at 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024, the gearing ratios were at
approximately 1.16 and 1.21, respectively.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of Group entities, primarily RMB.
The Group has sales and cost of sales denominated in the respective functional currencies
of the Group entities which were mainly RMB. Similarly, the Group’s trade receivable and
trade payable balances at the end of the reporting period had limited foreign currency
exposures and bulk of the sales and purchases were denominated in the respective functional
currencies of the Group entities which were mainly RMB. Currently, the Group has not entered
into any hedges due to the limited transactional foreign currency exposure. The Board and
management closely monitor the foreign exchange exposure to evaluate the risks from time to
time and to take necessary action if needed.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had no material contingent liabilities. As at 30 June 2025, the
Group was not involved in any material legal proceedings, nor was the Group aware of any
pending or potential material legal proceedings involving the Group.

Pledge of Assets

Details of pledge of assets of the Group are set out in Note 23 to the financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2025.
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Significant Investments Held

Except for investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, and investments in the Group’s
projects prior to the commencement of construction and acquisitions, the Group did not hold
any significant investments in equity interests in any other company during the six months
ended 30 June 2025.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

Save as disclosed in this interim report, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries by the Group during the six months ended 30 June 2025.

Share Capital

Details of the Company's issued share capital during the six months ended 30 June 2025 are
set out in Note 21 to the financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2025.

Interim Dividend

The Board has not declared any interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2025
(six months ended 30 June 2024: Nil). The Company did not declare any dividend as the
Company required cash to fund its capital expenditure and investments in projects.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), comprising three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. An Hongjun (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Dr.
Kimmis Pun Kim Ming and Mr. Zhong Ming, has reviewed the Group’s unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2025.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Codes

The Group has applied the principles and the extent of compliance with the guidelines as
set out in the Singapore Code of Corporate Governance 2018 (“Code”) and the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (‘HK CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
C1 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules to provide the structure through which the objectives of
protection of shareholders’ interest and enhancement of long term shareholders’ value are
met. In the event of any conflict between the Code and the HK CG Code, the Group will
comply with the more onerous provisions. Throughout the six months ended 30 June 2025, the
Group had complied with the Code and the HK CG Code save in respect of the following:

o Provision 11.4 of the Code requires an issuer’s Constitution to allow for absentia
voting at general meetings of shareholders. Voting by absentia by mail, facsimile or
email is currently not provided in the Company’s Constitution as such voting methods
would need to be cautiously studied for its feasibility to ensure that the integrity of
the information and the authenticity of the shareholder’s identity is not compromised.
The Company is of the view that despite Provision 11.4 of the Code, shareholders
nevertheless have opportunities to communicate their views on matters affecting the
Company even when they are not in attendance at general meetings. For example,
shareholders may appoint proxies to attend, speak and vote, on their behalf, at the
respective general meetings.
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Provisions 2.2 and 2.3 of the Code provide that independent directors make up a
majority of the Board where the Chairman is not independent and non-executive
directors make up a majority of the Board, respectively. The Board currently comprises
four (4) Executive Directors and three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
Chairman of the board and executive Director, Mr. Zhou Yuding, is not considered
independent, and the Independent Non-Executive Directors and the Non-Executive
Directors each do not make up a majority of the Board. Notwithstanding the above and
the requirements of Provisions 2.2 and 2.3 of the Code, the nomination committee of
the Company (the “NC”) has reviewed the size and composition of the Board and after
taking into account the scope and nature of operations of the Group in the period under
review including diversity of background, experience, gender, age and other relevant
factors, the NC is satisfied that the current Board size is appropriate and effective with
composition of four (4) Executive Directors, and three (3) Independent Non-Executive
Directors. To address the issue of independence, the Board has put in place a Lead
Independent Non-Executive Director, who is available to shareholders where they
have concerns. The Board is of the view that the Independent Non-Executive Directors
demonstrate a strong level of independence and judgement in discharging their duties
and responsibilities as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company with the
utmost commitment in upholding the interest of the non-controlling shareholders. They
have expressed individual and independent viewpoints and input, debated issues,
and objectively scrutinised and challenged the Management taking into consideration
the long-term interests of the Group and its shareholders. No individual or small group
of individuals dominates the Board's decision making. Nonetheless, the Company is
constantly on the lookout for suitable candidates to join the Board as Independent Non-
Executive Directors as part of its review process. In view of the foregoing, the Board is
of the view that the Boards composition has an appropriate level of independence and
diversity of thought and background to enable it to make decisions in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole, consistent with the intent of Principle 2
of the Code.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company (the “RC") comprises four (4) members,
three (3) of whom (including the Chairman of the RC) are independent. Mr. Zhou Yuding,
the Chairman of the Board and Executive Director of the Company, is a member of the
RC. Although Provision 6.2 of the Code provides that the RC should comprise entirely of
Non-Executive Directors, the majority of whom, including the Chairman of the RC should
be independent, the Board is of the view that Mr. Zhou Yuding should be a member of
the RC. Mr. Zhou Yuding has extensive knowledge and experience in China and he is
well-placed to advise on remuneration packages of the key management personnel who
are largely based in China. Hence, the inclusion of Mr. Zhou Yuding as a member of
the RC is considered beneficial to the Group. The Board has a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policies on director and executive remuneration, and for fixing
the remuneration packages of individual directors and key management personnel.
No director or any of his associates or key management personnel are involved in any
decision-making relating to his or her own remuneration or compensation packages. This is
consistent with the intent of Principle 6 of the Code.
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Dealing in Company’s Securities

In compliance with Rule 1207(19) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Model Code as set
out in Appendix C3 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules, the Company had adopted a Code of
Best Practices on terms no less exacting than the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Model Code
to provide guidance to its officers on securities transactions by the Company and its officers.

The Company and its officers are not allowed to deal in the Company’s securities (i) during
the period commencing two weeks before the announcement of the Company’s financial
statements for each of the first three quarters of its financial year and one month before the
announcement of the Company’s full year financial statements (if the Company announces
its quarterly financial statements), or one month before the announcement of the Company’s
half year and full year financial statements (if the Company does not announce its quarterly
financial statements) pursuant to Rule 1207(19) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual; and (ii) during
the period commencing 30 days immediately before the announcement of the Company’s
quarterly results (if any) and interim results and 60 days immediately before the announcement
of the Company’s full year results, and ending on the date of the announcement of the
relevant results pursuant to the Model Code.

The Directors, Management and executives of the Group are also expected to observe
relevant insider trading laws at all times, even when dealing in securities within permitted
trading periods, especially if they are in possession of material non-public information relating
to the Company. They are also not allowed to deal in the Company’s securities on short-term
considerations.

Specific enquiry was made of all the Directors and the Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the SGX-ST Listing Manual, the Model Code and the Code of Best Practices
throughout the six months ended 30 June 2025.

Share Option
As at 30 June 2025, the Company did not have any share option scheme.

Subsequent Events

Details of subsequent events of the Group are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements
for the six months ended 30 June 2025.
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Audit or Review of the Financial Results

The interim results contained in this interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2025
have not been audited or reviewed by the auditors of the Company but have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee as at the date of this interim report.

Where a forecast, or a prospect statement, has been previously disclosed to
Shareholders, any variance between it and the actual results

Not applicable. No forecast or prospect statement has been previously disclosed to
shareholders.

A commentary at the date of the announcement of the significant trends and
competitive conditions of the industry in which the Group operates and any
known factors or events that may affect the Group in the next reporting period
and the next 12 months

In the first half of 2025, the People’s Republic of China (“China”) continued to promote
the construction of a Beautiful China. The Report on the Work of the Government (2025)
proposed to make concerted efforts to cut carbon emissions, reduce pollution, pursue
green development and boost economic growth, and step up green transformation in
overall economic and social development; further deepen the reform of the ecological
civilization system, coordinate industrial structure adjustment, pollution control, ecological
protection and tackle climate change, and promote ecological priority, conservation and
intensiveness, green and low-carbon development; strengthen pollution prevention and
control and ecological construction; continue to deepen efforts to protect the blue sky,
clear water and pure land; formulate an action plan for the comprehensive management
of solid waste, and strengthen the synergistic management of new pollutants and the
control of environmental risks. In January 2025, the Ministry of Ecology and Environment
issued the “Implementation Opinions on Launching Pilot Zones for Building a Beautiful
China (BREREBHRELTEMNEREER))", which advocates the in-depth
implementation of coordinated regional development strategies and major regional
strategies, highlighting the three major regions (i.e., the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region,
the Yangtze River Delta and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area),
synergistically promoting the high-level protection of the Yangtze River and Yellow
River basins, focusing on solving cross-provincial common problems, strengthening
collaboration on regional green development, and deepening the joint governance for
ecological environment. The Group will actively seize the favorable policy opportunities
in the industry, and actively explore high-quality new project opportunities while
orderly promoting the construction and upgrading of the existing projects. At present,
the Group’s “One Mountain and One River” benchmark projects have made positive
progress. The benchmark solid waste treatment project, Shanghai Baoshan Renewable
Energy Utilization Center (‘Baoshan Project’), is operating well, and the key sewage
treatment project, Qingpu Xicen Water Purification Plant (“Xicen Project”), has entered
commercial operation. The Group will continue to optimize its business layout and
expand its market share to consolidate its leadership in China’s water and environmental
protection industries.
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On the water policy front, in January 2025, the Shanghai Municipal Bureau of Ecology
and Environment, together with the Shanghai Municipal Bureau of Planning and
Natural Resources, the Shanghai Water Authority, the Shanghai Municipal Commission
of Agriculture and Rural Affairs, and the Shanghai Landscaping & City Appearance
Administrative Bureau, issued the “Shanghai Groundwater Pollution Prevention and
Control Key Zone Delineation and Management Plan* ({ /& it T 7k 55 4 F5 )4 & 2
BEEREZEFR)), which puts forward that the water department shall strengthen
the management of the drainage pipelines; strengthen the domestic sewage treatment
in rural areas, and adopt a combination of on-site centralized treatment, treatment
through collection pipes and resource utilization, so as to comprehensively realize
the management and control of domestic sewage treatment in rural areas in the
control category areas. In April 2025, the Shanghai Municipal Development & Reform
Commission issued the “Shanghai 2025 Key Work Arrangements for Carbon Peaking,
Carbon Neutrality, and Energy Conservation & Emission Reduction* ({_£/§ 1120254 fix
5 A AL R HEE 2 THEZ HE))”, which proposes intensified implementation of key
pollutant reduction projects, including the completion of a number of sewage treatment
projects with new daily sewage treatment capacity of 789,000 m3. In May 2025, the
Action Program for the Protection and Construction of Beautiful Rivers and Lakes (2025~
2027)" ((FBHHR# B2 RITE 7 R(2025-20274F)) ) was issued, calling for focusing
on improving the quality of water ecosystems, adhering to precise, scientific and legal
pollution contral, coordinating the comprehensive management of water resources, water
environment and water ecology, promoting the establishment of an integrated ecological
environment governance system that connects the upstream and downstream sections
of important river basins, accelerating the protection and restoration of beautiful rivers
and lakes, and enhancing the health and sustainability of river and lake ecosystems. In
June, the General Office of the CPC Central Committee and the General Office of the
State Council jointly issued the Opinions on Comprehensively Advancing River Protection
and Management* ((#m 2 E#E T REREMEER)), which proposes, by 2035,
further improving the level of economical and intensive utilization of water resources,
markedly enhancing the level of safety guarantee of water supply for both urban and
rural areas, comprehensively improving the quality of river ecological environment, and
keeping the water ecosystems healthy and stable.

On the sewage treatment front, the Group will actively respond to national policies,
firmly implement the concept of green development, and continuously reduce carbon
dioxide emissions from sewage treatment projects by leveraging innovative technologies
and approaches, so as to contribute to the achievement of carbon peaking and carbon
neutrality goals and make efforts to promote green development in the industry.
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As for the digitalization development of water affairs, in March 2025, the Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology and other two departments jointly issued
the “Several Opinions on Promoting the High-quality Development of Environmental
Protection Equipment Manufacturing Industry”, which proposes, in the “generating new
impetus for the development of the industry” section, promoting the transformation
of pollutant management to synergistic pollution reduction and carbon reduction;
facilitating enterprises engaged in atmospheric control, sewage treatment and solid
waste treatment to research and develop new processes and technologies; developing
innovative multi-pollutant treatment technologies and equipment to help realize the
synergistic reduction of sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides, fine particulate matter, volatile
organic compounds and other pollutants; enhancing the level of energy efficiency and
carbon effect of equipment; promoting the resource utilization of wastes; encouraging
enterprises to expand the greenhouse gas reduction, new pollutant treatment, emerging
solid waste disposal and other businesses; researching and developing a number of
environmental protection robots, intelligent pollution control equipment, and remote
operation and maintenance equipment around the intelligent water affairs, pipeline
cleaning, environmental monitoring and other areas; and speeding up the promotion
and application of analogue simulation software, virtual reality, digital twins and other
advanced technologies.

In terms of green financing, in February 2025, the National Financial Regulatory
Administration and the People’s Bank of China jointly issued the “Implementation Plan
for the High-quality Development of Green Finance in Banking and Insurance industry*
BITERREGELRERELERER AR, which proposes that financial institutions
shall focus on serving the optimization and upgrade of the industrial structure from the
demand side, the low-carbon transformation of the energy system, the improvement
of ecological environment quality and the protection of biodiversity, the construction of
the carbon market and other areas; optimize financial services from the supply side,
increase the supply of bank credit, improve the green insurance system, develop
channels for green financial services, improve the green financial standards, and
gradually establish and perfect the information disclosure mechanism. With the support
of relevant policies, the Group will develop more financing channels, lower financing
costs and enhance the efficiency of resource allocation, which will be conducive to
the expansion of the Group’s business scale and the commencement of new project
construction.

Looking ahead, the Group will closely align with national policy directives and market
dynamics, concentrating on its core businesses while accelerating business expansion;
continue refining lean operation models, strengthen technology-driven innovation,
and fast-track digital intelligence transformation to holistically empower business
upgrades. Concurrently, by fully leveraging the capital advantages of its dual-listing in
Singapore and Hong Kong, the Group will actively develop domestic and international
environmental protection markets, thereby contributing to building a Beautiful China.
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If the Group has obtained a general mandate from Shareholders for interest person
transactions (the “IPTs” ), the aggregate value of such transactions as required
under Rule 920(1)(a)(ii) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual. If no IPT mandate has been
obtained, a statement to that effect

No IPT mandate has been obtained from Shareholders.

A statement showing all sales, transfers, cancellation and/or use of treasury shares as
at the end of the current financial period reported on

There was no sale, transfer, disposal, cancellation and/or use of treasury shares during
the six month financial period ended 30 June 2025.

A statement showing all sales, transfers, cancellation and/or use of subsidiary
holdings as at the end of the current financial period reported on

There was no sale, transfer, cancellation andfor use of subsidiary holdings during the six
month financial period ended 30 June 2025.

Confirmation by Directors pursuant to Rule 705(5) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual

We, Ji Guanglin and Wang Xiwang, do hereby confirm on behalf of the Board of
Directors of the Company that, to the best of our knowledge, nothing has come to
the attention of the Board of Directors of the Company which may render the financial
statements for the period ended 30 June 2025, to be false or misleading, in any material
aspect.

Confirmation that the issuer has procured undertakings from all its directors and
executive officers under Rule 720(1) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual

The Company confirms that it has procured undertakings from all its Directors and

executive officers of the Company in the format set out in Appendix 7.7 under Rule
720(1) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual.
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BRFRGESRERANZARER

For the six months ended 30 June 2025

H 22025567308 1518 A

Six months ended 30 June

#E6A30HILAMEA
2025 2024
20255 20245
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEFT
Note (unaudited) (unaudited)
it aE (RIEEH) (RERE:)
Revenue A 8 3,177,120 3,323,515
Cost of sales HEMK (1,919,969) (2,046,128)
Gross profit EF 1,257,151 1,277,387
Other income Hib A 9 49,105 42 854
Other gains and losses HEh s e g 10 5,402 2,481
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEBR (40,127) (37,966)
Administrative expenses THEZ (272,260) (240,508)
Finance expenses BHER 11 (350,104) (400,052)
Share of results of joint ventures BIEEELEER 1,911 (1,033)
Share of results of associates [EIEEE REIRE 291 8,755
Profit before tax REfA 651,369 651,918
Income tax expense PR 12 (97,854) (143,701)
Profit for the period HnFE 13 553,515 508,217
Profit for the period, attributable to: THEREEHRFE
Owners of the Company ARRIEARA 344,258 321,446
Non-controlling interests FERiER 209,257 186,771
Profit for the period HnFE 553,515 508,217
Earnings per share for profit for the period HAFLREEABGHEATIRZ
attributable to the owners of the Company BEREH
during the period
Basic (RMB cents per share) ER(BRARES) 14 13.37 12.48
Diluted (RMB cents per share) B8 (BRARES) 14 13.37 12.48
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ERPRGRERANZANRR

For the six months ended 30 June 2025

B 220256308 1L fE A
Six months ended 30 June
#E6A30ALAMER
2025 2024
20255 20244
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFT
Note (unaudited) (unaudited)
it (RiEEH) (REE&EET)
Profit for the period HMmFE 553,515 508,217
Other comprehensive loss: Kt 2mEE5HE -
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to E# T8 EF B2 EmEE -
profit or oss:
Exchange difference arising from translation REEAMELEZS (36,515) (79,278)
Fair value change on investments in equity BERANBEFAEMZEKAN
instruments designated as at FVTOCI RETAREMNAABES (10,400) -
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to B A EF P FE BB
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising from translation of ~ HEGHEHEENEL =5
foreign operations - 61,494
Total other comprehensive losses for the period,  HRE M2 EEE
net of tax BE - HRTRIE (46,915) (17,784)
Total comprehensive income for the period HAz2EbaRE 506,600 490,433
Total comprehensive income attributable to: M T&EEE2 LS04 :
Owners of the Company KRBHEBA 297,343 303,662
Non-controlling interests B 209,257 186,771
Total comprehensive income for the period HhzEkaHE 506,600 490,433
See accompanying notes to financial statements. R BHRZEM
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BRFRESMERAR

At 30 June 2025
#2025%6 A30H

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025% 20245
6A30H 12A31H
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARET L
Note (unaudited) (audited)
itz (REEH) (lEE)
Current assets nEEE
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEED 4,012,387 2,918,241
Pledged bank deposits BEBBITER 90,501 67,567
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EENFE 15 6,710,618 6,394,057
Bills receivables B ER 607 109
Prepayments BRFIE 64,958 62,122
Inventories RE 238,333 245,199
Receivables under service concession RIS T A & B IR TR MGRIE —
arrangements - current portion REE S 16 851,628 900,577
Amounts due from customers for EREPEHTIRER
contract work 57,686 53,591
Amounts due from joint venture A EMERA 11,000 11,000
Amounts due from associates JE U s i 0 B FUR 7,895 7,895
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss &2 % BB ABER
SREE 24 9,797 10,061
Assets classified as held for sale NEARBEHNENEE - 107,741
Total current assets RBBERRE 12,055,410 10,778,160
Non-current assets FERBEE
Financial assets at fair value through other RAnEEH AL BEERER
comprehensive income SREE 24 3,000 13,400
Prepayments BEFE 49,623 41,262
Receivables under service concession RIS R HEE TG IE—
arrangements - non-current portion EREID 16 19,895,971 21,041,568
Property, plant and equipment nE - BEREE 17 432,483 465,857
Right-of-use assets FREEE 55,547 60,306
Intangible assets BEHEE 18 11,609,333 11,334,107
Long term receivables REAEIERR 85,171 81,775
Deferred tax assets EREMBEE 60,986 53,899
Interest in joint ventures BELERES 482,355 480,444
Interest in associates B DRIER 116,015 115,724
Goodwill on consolidation XS 457,241 457 241
Amounts due from associates JE U & A B R 31,191 32,755
Total non-current assets FRBEELR 33,278,916 34,178,338
Total assets BELE 45,334,326 44,956,498
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ERRHREHERAR

At 30 June 2025
#202596 A30H

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
20255 20245
6A30H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Note (unaudited) (audited)
Pt & €3:% Hl (&)
Current liabilities nBAR
Trade and other payables BH R EMENFUR 19 3,247,653 3,782,599
Tax payable JE 4 5K 124,376 137,515
Amounts due to customers for contract work EREFANTIRER 10,290 20,037
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 20 4,696,209 5,315,861
Lease liabilities HEEE 8,692 8,191
Total current liabilities nYaEESE 8,087,220 9,264,203
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Bank and other borrowings BOIREMER 20 18,281,245 17,023,019
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHREAR 2,419,410 2,428,769
Other non-current liabilities HpEmeas 104,607 114,187
Lease liabilities HEEE 39,412 43810
Total non-current liabilities FRBaBasn 20,844,674 19,609,785
Capital, reserves and BF - ERERERRESR
non-controlling interests
Share capital P AR 21 6,604,723 6,604,723
Retained earnings REEF 4,519,773 4,388,207
Other reserves HiofkE (348,648) (357,861)
Equity attributable to owners of AREHEEAEGER
the Company 10,775,848 10,635,069
Non-controlling interests kR 5,626,584 5,447 441
Total equity R 16,402,432 16,082,510
Total liabilities and equity ARTEREH 45,334,326 44,956,498
See accompanying notes to financial statements. B BHREZREMN i -
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

LEEE L £ LIS

For the six months ended 30 June 2025
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ERPGREEREDR

For the six months ended 30 June 2025

H 2202565301 IF
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ERPHGEoHCEDR

For the six months ended 30 June 2025
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BREGERERER
For the six months ended 30 June 2025
HZ202556430H L7~ 18 A

Six months ended 30 June

#E6A30ALAMER
2025 2024
20255 20244
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN: & ARBEFT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(RIEEH) (RECEET)
Operating activities REEH
Profit before tax REfE 651,369 651,918
Adjustments for: RIS BELAR:
Loss allowance for trade receivables, net B HRIGENEBIRER - 58 106,229 830
Reversal of loss allowance for non-trade receivables, B ZRMGUIRR BB
net EBEE  FE (53,000) (188)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0¥ BERRERE 31,891 27,294
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHRH 383,952 238,087
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 4,539 9,470
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE  BEREERE (647) (24)
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEREERE (48,164) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiary and associate HENB AR REE A A= (13,277) -
Finance income FBBA (13,910) (14,119)
Finance expenses AR 350,104 400,052
Share of results of associates [EEHeRREE (291) (8,755)
Share of results of joint ventures EEEEREEE (1,911) 1,033
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through BARBEMABENSE
profit and loss BENABERR 264 172
Operating cash flows before working capital changes EEE&EBHMHES
BEHRER 1,397,148 1,306,670
(Increase) Decrease in: ()R -
Inventories TE 6,866 (672)
Amounts due from/to customers for contract work, net B/ ENEEANIRE B8 (13,842) 4,398
Trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments BHRWGIE - BB REN
B2 (311,269) (1,024,004)
Bills receivables ERERE (498) 1,169
Amounts due from joint ventures EREETEFRIE (2,700) 6,073
Amounts due from associates JEYH & N BIFUR 1,564 (260)
Decrease in: AL
Trade and other payables (inclusive of non-current BHREMENTIE
liabilities) (BREIFRBER) (559,012) (150,139)
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BRFHGERARNER

For the six months ended 30 June 2025
HZ2025%6A30R L7~ 18 A

Six months ended 30 June

#E6A30ALAMER
2025 2024
20255 2024
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(RiEER) (REEFE)
Cash generated from operating activities before REBRAEERHSENEEED
service concession arrangement projects 330k 8 518,257 143,145
Change in receivables under service concession BT EE 2B T RKTIES
arrangements (Note A) (Fi3EA) 277,610 (74,010)
Cash generated from operating activities after service REEBFEERISREEETH
concession arrangement projects EENRS 795,867 69,135
Interest received BUFIE 7,025 10,670
Income tax refund PG TR - 1,549
Income tax paid [RESGiREY (171,400) (145,771)
Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities EZEFHES (FFA)HALFHE 631,492 (64,417)
Investing activities: REED:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELE (13,908) (26,157)
Purchase of intangible assets, net of amount on credit BREEVAE NREHEHEE
terms (239,699) (311,899)
Movement in prepayment for property, plant and ¥ BERSENEVEE
equipment and intangible assets, net BRRIELE 28 (14,374) (69,141)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and ¥ BELKRERE
equipment PSR 17,850 97
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets EREEREBMEIE 381,497 -
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—FIHLDRMERA 119,658 -
Dividend received BHEE 2,700 22,439
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHBLERE
MAFE 1,770 -
Net cash generated from (used in) investing activities #EEFHES (FA)FMAREEH 255,494 (384,661)
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Six months ended 30 June

#E6A30ALAMER
2025 2024
2025% 2024F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBFT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(RIEEE) (REE=EL)
Financing activities: MEEE:
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings PITREMEREERE 5,787,187 7,710,292
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERTREMER (5,009,537) (6,731,557)
Interest paid Hﬂ (366,037) (452,802)
Principal and interest elements of lease payments ENFNAERMNERD (5,148) (7,962)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders SEHﬂE i EXi0) 95 (157,479) (82,431)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest in subsidiaries 3t FH B Tiﬁzﬂﬂ‘&f}?’iﬁ’\]ﬂ%@ (2,122) (5,162)
Contribution from non-controlling interests upon miBARFAEINE 2%
additional capital injection in subsidiaries FERERLE 1,400 -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W SR B (22,750) -
Increase in pledged bank deposits BEARITE R (22,934) (8,336)
Net cash generated from financing activities METHELENESBE 202,580 422,042
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents RERHEEEY
EmORD) 38 1,089,566 (27,036)
. . . g
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period HMRe LR EED 2,918,241 0,885,781
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash EXFHERERES
equivalents TRz E 4,580 (6,710)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period HRHASRALEREM 4,012,387 2,852,035

Note A:

In accordance with the application of SFRS(I) INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements and
SFRS(1) 1-7 Statement of Cash Flows, the movement in the receivables under service concession
arrangements has been classified under operating activities. The movement in the receivables under
service concession arrangements was mainly arising from the construction and/or purchase of new
or existing water treatment and waste incineration facilities for the six months ended 30 June 2025.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARG ME R RN

For the six months ended 30 June 2025
HZ2025%6A30R L7~ 18 A

42

GENERAL

SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is a public limited company,
incorporated and domiciled in the Republic of Singapore and is dual listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST") and the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "HKEX").

The Company and its subsidiaries’ (together, “the Group”) immediate and ultimate
holding companies are S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“SII") incorporated in British
Virgin Islands (“BVI") and Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (“SIIC”)
incorporated in Hong Kong respectively. The registered office and principal place of
business of the Company is located at One Temasek Avenue, #37-02 Millenia Tower,
Singapore 039192. Related companies in these financial statements refer to members of
the ultimate holding company’s group of companies.

The presentation currency of the financial statements is Renminbi (“RMB”) as the
Group’s operations are substantially based in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2025 have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(1)") 34 Interim Financial Reporting issued by
the Accounting Standards Committee under the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authority and the applicable disclosure requirements of Appendix D2 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has applied the same accounting policies and methods of computation in
the financial statements for the current financial period as that of the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024. The Group has not early adopted
any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet
effective.

A number of amendments to Standards have become applicable for the current
reporting period. The Group did not have to change its accounting policies or make
retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting those standards.

ESTIMATES

The preparation of condensed interim consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets and liabilities, income and
expense. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing this condensed interim consolidated financial statements, the significant
judgements made by management in applying the Group’s accounting policies and
key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as those that applied to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from its operations
and the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include (i) foreign currency
risk; (ii) interest rate risk; (iii) liquidity risk; and (iv) credit risk. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management of these risks, which
are executed by the Finance Director and Management.

The condensed interim consolidated financial statements do not include all financial risk
management information and disclosures required in the annual financial statements,
and should be read in conjunction with the Group’s annual financial statements as at 31
December 2024.

There have been no changes in the risk management policies since year end.

SEASONAL OPERATIONS

The Group’s businesses are not affected significantly by seasonal or cyclical factors
during the financial period.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business segments based on
their products and services, and has three reportable segments as follows:

() Water and Sludge Treatment:

Principal activities include construction, management and operation of water
and sludge related infrastructure under service concession arrangements and
management and operation of water and sludge related infrastructure under non-
service concession arrangements and financial income under service concession
arrangements.

(i) Water Supply:
Principal activities include construction, management and operation of water
supply related infrastructure under service concession arrangements.

(iii) Waste Incineration:

Principal activities include construction, management and operation of waste
incineration related infrastructure under service concession arrangements.

Other operations include design and consultancy on the projects and installation of
water meters. None of these segments meets any of the quantitative thresholds for
determining reportable segments for the six months ended 30 June 2025 and 2024,

Management monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or 0ss.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Group’s financing is
managed on a Group basis and are not allocated to operating segments. Unallocated
assets/liabilities mainly comprise of corporate assets and liabilities and interest
receivable and payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LELE L e

For the six months ended 30 June 2025
22025567308 1E7~ 18 A

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the six month period ended
30 June 2025 to acquire property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than

goodwill.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on agreed-term basis in a manner

similar to transactions with third parties.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating segments:

Six months ended 30 June 2025 (unaudited)

AWEH(R)

DEEARRE L BB E2025F6A308 1L/~ 18 A Ui
NE BERREARRBEZNNEVEEMN
EAEMKAREE -

BRENTHNBERER RES=ITOEURS
REBTERES

ABBARRES
ATRAEERED B WAREEDH -

BE2024F6A30H EAEA (REF)

Water and Total for

Sludge Waste Reportable
All amount in RMB’000 Treatment ~ Water Supply Incineration Segments  Unallocated  Consolidated

2 MER
FEEFUARST A FHERY #k EERR anaE £ EL
Revenue O 2,578,313 386,576 212,231 3,177,120 - 3,177,120
Reportable segment profit from operations ERPPEEFHE 864,906 42,225 100,787 1,007,918 (22,248) 985,670
Finance income FHEIMA - - - = 13910 13,910
Finance expenses HBER - - - - (350,104) (350,104)
Other non-operating income TN (18,053) 23,160 288 5,395 (5,704) (309)
Share of results of associates AN+ 291 - - 291 - 291
Share of results of joint ventures BlhadtszE - - 1911 1,911 - 1,911
Income tax expense FERER (76,685) (17,126) (6,893) (100,704) 2,850 (97,854)
Profit after tax e HE 770,459 48,259 96,093 914,811 (361,296) 553,515
Segment depreciation and amortisation PEHFERER 300,665 90,304 28,923 419,982 400 420,382
Segment non-cash income PHERLYA - - - - - -
Segment non-cash expenses PEEREHT (48,366) (281) (4,346) (53,493) - (53,493)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)
Six months ended 30 June 2024 (unaudited)

7. SBAHE)

AEBAR R (R)

#E2024F6A30H LR EA (KEFH)

Water and Total for

Sludge Waste Reportable
All amount in RMB'000 Treatment ~ Water Supply Incineration Segments Unallocated ~ Consolidated

*R B
AESBUARBT LA TREE ok EE%E HHeE Al At
Revenue WA 2,573,935 554,733 194,847 3,323,515 - 3323515
Reportable segment profit from operations W 2HATLLF|E 801,713 67,878 103,303 972,804 45,707 1,018,601
Finance income 15/ LON - - - - 14,119 14,119
Finance expenses BER - - - - (400,052) (400,052)
Other non-operating income ERERTON 13,299 (1,533) (238) 11528 - 11528
Share of results of associates EEBLENTEE 8,755 - - 8,755 - 8,755
Share of results of joint ventures ElEaArEEE - - (1,033) (1,033) - (1,033)
Income tax expense FSHEY (105,164) (18,677) (4.429) (128.270) (15,431) (143701)
Profit after tax RieflE 718,603 47,668 97,603 863,874 (355,657) 508,217
Segment depreciation and amortisation PERERER 149,500 91,853 24474 265,827 9,924 275,751
Segment non-cash income AHFEREUA 2% - - % - 2%
Segment non-cash expenses PHFREHT (172) (642) - (814) - (814)

Interim Report 2025 Hf#i%R%E 45



NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LELE L e

For the six months ended 30 June 2025
22025567308 1E7~ 18 A
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating segments:

7. SBAH(E)

ABRERRR

ATRAKBREN B EERABON :

At 30 June 2025 (unaudited) #202556A308 (REEH)
Water and Total for
Sludge Waste Reportable
All amount in RMB’000 Treatment ~ Water Supply Incineration Segments  Unallocated  Consolidated
o8 CEL ]
FELENARRT T FRERT #k BERE ARER 30 &it
Segment assets PHEE 34,010,314 3,846,006 5,966,986 43,823,306 899,853 44,723,159
Interest in joint ventures REELEER - - 482,355 482,355 - 482,355
Interest in associates VNG 82,085 - - 82,085 33,030 116,015
Financial assets at fair value through profit or &A% B ABHH
loss PREE 9,797 - - 9,797 - 9,797
Financial assets at fair value through other A% BB ARKZE
comprehensive income WAMEBAE 3,000 - - 3,000 - 3,000
Total assets BEBE 34,106,096 3,846,006 6,449,341 44,401,443 932,883 45,334,326
Segment liabiliies k= 15,875,231 1,535,449 4,158,831 21,569,511 7362383 28,931,894
Segment capital expenditure PHERER 190,834 44,662 (2,332) 233,164 103 233,267
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SHEH(E)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) SBEERAR (1)
At 31 December 2024 (Audited) 20245128318 ($EE&tH)
Water and Total for
Sludge Waste Reportable
All amount in RMB'000 Treatment  Water Supply Incineration Segments Unallocated ~ Consolidated
7 DEE
FESBUAARE T LA EREHT ok BEEE HHER Al aif
Segment assets PHEE 33,119,986 4,828,186 5080042 43937214 201914 44229128
Interest in joint ventures RELEER - - 480,444 480,444 - 480,444
Interest in associates BenER 82,604 - - 82,694 33,030 115,724
Financial assets at fair value through profitor &A% BIEGF AR
loss SHEE 10,061 - - 10,061 - 10,081
Financial assets at fair value through other A4 BEGFALAZE
comprehensive income hanepiE 13400 - - 13,400 - 13400
Assets classified as held for sale PEABELENEE - - - - 107,741 107,741
Total assets BEBE 33,206,141 4,828 186 6,469,486 44523813 432685 44,956498
Segment liabiliies HHERE 15,822,664 2,101,286 4,220,870 22,144,820 6720168 28873988
Segment capital expenditure PEHERHT 1334628 352977 238,105 1925710 46 1925756
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2025

HE2025%6A308 L7~ fE A
8. REVENUE A
Six months ended 30 June
#HE6A30HIENER
2025 2024
2025% 20244
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFL
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(RigEs) (RICEF)
Construction revenue [=E TN 271,607 562,225
Operating and maintenance income from service RBEFEE B BERA
concession arrangements 2,122,182 1,908,809
Financial income from service concession arrangements AR5 EFS & T HEB B UL 527,871 616,762
Service income ZiBEWA 119,594 101,383
Other revenue HiEEWA 135,866 134,336
3,177,120 3,323,515
Timing of revenue recognition W A\ B RR)
At a point in time RE AR 2,122,182 1,908,809
Over time — R 1,054,938 1,414,706
3,177,120 3,323,515
9. OTHER INCOME Hittlg A
Six months ended 30 June
#HE6A30HIEAEAR
2025 2024
20256 20244
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFL
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(RigEet) (RICEH)
Interest income on bank balances PITERFSWA 9,945 12,604
Other interest income HFIEWA 3,965 1,515
13,910 14,119
Government subsidies BT 5 8) 29,354 17,091
Others Hif 5,841 11,644
49,105 42 854
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10.

11.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

10. RftB2RER

Six months ended 30 June

#E6A30ALLAMER
2025 2024
20255 20245
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE%TR ARETT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(RiEEH) (RECEET)
Fair value (loss) gain on financial assets at BAnBEFABEHEN
fair value through profit and loss SREENDAEEBR) K& (264) (172)
Others Hi 5,666 2,653
5,402 2,481
FINANCE EXPENSES 1. MEER
Six months ended 30 June
#E6A30ALAMEA
2025 2024
2025% 2024
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(R¥BER) (REEEET)
Interest expense on interest-bearing loans FEERRERNASHX
and borrowings 343,317 396,212
Financial expense on amortisation of benefits AEERFEHENIBEER
to ex-employees 413 491
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBBENERE - 460
Others Hit 6,374 2,889
350,104 400,052
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For the six months ended 30 June 2025
22025567308 1E7~ 18 A

12.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. FRRAX

Six months ended 30 June

#HE6A30HLNRER
2025 2024
2025% 2024
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(RIEEH) (REEEET)
Current tax: AR -
— Current year -KEE 146,940 126,970
— (Over) Under provision in respect of prior periods — AR (BERE) BETR (30,372) 512
Deferred tax: ERFIA -
- Current year —-AEE (20,019) 18,575
— Under (Over) provision in respect of prior periods —BABRRETE BEEE) 1,305 (2,356)
97,854 143,701

The corporate income tax applicable to the Singapore companies of the Group is 17% (six
months ended 30 June 2024: 17%).

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is
25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. In accordance with the “Income Tax Law of the PRC
for Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises”, certain subsidiaries,
engaging in public infrastructure projects, are entitled to full exemption from EIT for the
first three years and a 50% reduction in EIT for the next three years from the first year of
generating operating income.
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13.  PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

13. MAFE
FRANBE MR GIA) THIRE:

Six months ended 30 June

#Z6A30ALAMHEA

2025 2024

2025% 2004

RMB’000 RMB'000

AEB%TR AEBTT

(unaudited) (unaudited)

(KiE#F) (REE)

Loss allowance for trade receivables, net EHREUTENBEER 58 106,229 830
Reversal of loss allowance for FEFRWTENBEERED  2H

non-trade receivables, net (53,000) (188)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nE  BERZENE 31,891 27,294

Amortisation of intangible assets BVEEZH 383,952 238,987

Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 4,539 9,470

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BE REHERR (647) (24)

Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEERFEENR (48,164) -

Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value ERAABENNERNESREE
through profit and loss RrrEEER 264 172
Foreign exchange gain, net SMEYE - FE (29,696) (2,117)
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For the six months ended 30 June 2025
22025567308 1E7~ 18 A

14,

52

EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BEREH
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS’) attributable to AREEBAEEEREARBERF (GRE
owners of the Company is based on the following data: FDDRETHEENE -
Six months ended
30 June
#E6A30HLNRMEAR
2025 2024
20255 2024
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE%TT ARETT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(RiEEH) (REEEET)
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted EPS FEEAREEGRENNFE
(profit for the period attributable to owners (RAREHEA AREFENTE)
of the Company) 344,258 321,446
Six months ended 30 June
#E6A30ALAMEA
2025 2024
20255 20244
No. of shares No. of shares
(000) ('000)
B8 B T8 =R
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(RIEEH) (RECEET)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the - EER R EEESR BT/
purpose of basic and diluted EPS LB TS 2,575,666 2,575,666
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15.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15. HARAMEHRRE

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of loss allowance, presented UTARBEHRREZAHEINE HEER
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: B (MBBELER) HRES T
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025%6A 308 202412318
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
(unaudited) (audited)
(RiEE) (&)
Within 30 days 308K 899,559 865,481
Within 31 to 60 days 31ZE60HA 371,004 403,165
Within 61 to 90 days 61Z£90H A 368,384 382,549
Within 91 to 180 days MZE180HK 956,000 1,022,262
Within 181 to 365 days 181£365H A 1,464,475 1,224,869
Over 365 days HiB365H 1,805,207 1,620,742
5,864,629 5,519,068
() Trade receivables exclusive of retention monies are non-interest bearing with credit () EBIRUFE(TEEREL)AEE  FEH—
periods generally ranging from 0 to 180 (31 December 2024: 0 to 180) days. BN TFOE180K (2024F12A31H : 0£180K)
(i) Trade receivables pledged by the Group is disclosed in Note 23 to the financial (i)  AEEERNZESEUGRIER B REM TR
statements. B e
Movements in the loss allowance of trade receivables: BHRNFEBELEEE
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025%6A 308 202412318
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
(unaudited) (audited)
(RiEER) (&)
At beginning of the period/year B4,/ F 1) 133,286 71,152
Allowance made during the period/year B,/ N EE 106,229 62,134
At end of the period/year HR/FR 239,515 133,286
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For the six months ended 30 June 2025
22025567308 1E7~ 18 A

16.

17.

18.

54

RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS 16. BREBFEERFETREESE
Consideration given by the grantor for a service concession arrangement is accounted BT ARBRBETEERFELNEEARAR
for as an intangible asset (operating concessions) or a financial asset (receivables WEE(BTCER) hemiE REFTEER
under service concession arrangements) or a combination of both, as appropriate. The FETEBZE) IMmELES (NER) - e BEE
financial asset component is as follows: R BH T
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
202556300 202412318
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN: & ARETT
(unaudited) (audited)
(RiEEH) (&)
Receivables under service concession arrangements PR AT T BETR TR UGRA 20,747,599 21,942,145
Less: Current portion classified as current assets B ABERRYEENRBIHD (851,628) (900,577)
Non-current portion ElinEo)k ) 19,895,971 21,041,568
Expected collection schedule is analysed BHRREREAMMT :
as follows:
Within 1 year 1ER 851,628 900,577
Within 2 to 5 years PESEAN 3,044,966 3,707,932
Over 5 years 5EAF 16,851,005 17,333,636
20,747,599 21,942,145
As at 30 June 2025, the Group has RMB1,181,420,000 (31 December 2024: R2025F6 4308 F AR ERBFTLEREET
RMB1,202,546,000) of contract assets pertaining to construction contracts in progress BUFEBER PR ERREANNANEES
within the receivables under service concession arrangements balance. AR1,181,420,0007C (20245 12A31H : AR
1,202,546,0007T) °
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. P¥ BERRR
During the period, the Group’s additions of property, plant and equipment amounted to A AEERENE  BEREENEEAAR
RMB14,257,000 (Six months ended 30 June 2024: RMB6,034,000). There were disposals #14,257,0007C (B Z2024F6 A30B IE~E A © A
andfor write-off of property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying amount of [X #6,034,0007T) © A8 2£2025%6 A30H L7 1@
RMB17,148,000 (Six months ended 30 June 2024: RMB746,000) during the six months A HER/IMENE BERRENEEEE
ended 30 June 2025, BARM17,148,0007T (B E202456 A30E I/~ 1A
A ARM¥746,0007T) ©
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. EHREE

During the period, the Group’s additions of intangible assets amounted to
RMB219,010,000 (Six months ended 30 June 2024: RMB288,616,000).
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19.

20.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice

19. BARAMEFREA

RBEHREERAHZINOE HEMFENE

date at the end of the reporting period: RAFIT
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
202556308 202412318
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
(unaudited) (audited)
(RiEE) (g=Fst)
Within 30 days 308K 335,520 769,462
Within 31 to 60 days 31ZE60HA 99,217 135,296
Within 61 to 90 days 61Z£90H A 94,515 69,058
Within 91 to 180 days MZE180HK 209,511 223,112
Within 181 to 365 days 181£365H A 332,656 146,860
Over 365 days HiB365H 709,104 781,892
1,780,523 2,125,680

The average credit period on purchases is 30 to 90 days (31 December 2024: 30 to 90

days).

No interest is charged on the overdue outstanding balances.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

HERNTHEEHA30E0H (20245128310

30%290H) o

REFCRBLHRRAE -

20. BITREMER

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025%6H30H 202412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE%TR ARBEFT
(unaudited) (audited)
(R¥EEH) (fEFT)

Amount payable within one year or on demand AR—FERFRERZANRIE
Secured Pepiigii 1,130,981 1,865,301
Unsecured i 3,565,228 3,450,560
4,696,209 5,315,861

Amount payable after one year BR—ERIIRER L TR
Secured BHEA 11,541,622 12,403,237
Unsecured I 6,739,623 4,619,782
18,281,245 17,023,019
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For the six months ended 30 June 2025
22025567308 1E7~ 18 A

20. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 20.

Certain bank and other borrowings are secured/guaranteed by the Group's assets which
are disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements.

Management has assessed that there is no breach of loan covenants as at 30 June
2025.

§817 B Lt £ o (46)

BETROREMERMFAEEEEFER/BR
AERBERM B RRM T3 -

EEED TAR2025F6 4308 W EE R B L o

21. SHARE CAPITAL 21. B%F
Group and Company
FRERFLT
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
HERBE £
RMB'000
AEREFT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(REFH) (REFE)
Issued and paid up share capital [RESSIE: I e
At 1 January 2024, 31 December 2024 and 202451818 ~ 2024F 128318 &
30 June 2025 202556 430H 2,575,665,726 6,604,723

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared
by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restriction. The
ordinary shares have no par value.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the six months ended
30 June 2025.

22. DIVIDENDS 22,

A final one-tier tax exempt dividend of S$0.011 per ordinary share in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2024 was approved in the annual general meeting
held on 29 April 2025 and paid out on 30 May 2025.
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23.

24,

PLEDGE ON ASSETS

The aggregate carrying value of assets pledged by the Group to secure banking
facilities granted by these banks, leased assets by leasing company and use of certain
operating concession assets are as follows:

23. HEER

TEBARBRIRTORTERRE HER
AMBEEEERERE THACEEEMARD
EENREEABMT

Group

*%H
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025%6A 308 20245 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE%TR ARETT
(unaudited) (audited)
€33 1)) (&&:T)
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER 90,501 67,567
Property, plant and equipment 0E - BERRE — 4,856
Intangible assets BVAE 3,904,446 3,522,236
Land use rights T e - 438
Trade receivables 2 S EWEE - 375,219
Receivables under service concession arrangements PR AT T HEIR TR MGUA 12,701,446 13,782,315
16,696,393 17,752,631

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Except as detailed in the following tables below, the directors of the Company consider
that the carrying amounts of all other financial assets and financial liabilities that are
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements to approximate
their fair value, due to their short-term nature, that they are floating rate instruments
that are re-priced to market interest rates on or near the end of the reporting period, or
the discount rate used to amortise the instruments approximates the prevailing market
interest rates.

4. RERARMOARENE
BTRAFLEN ARDEERAMBEMLR
GAMBRRREBHERAIIGNEREER TR
AENEEERALAEERE RASEER
HE  AERBERRIEOREHROTS
MEBHEBOTDMNETE ARNEHEE
TANFRXERTHENEMES -
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LELE L e

For the six months ended 30 June 2025
22025567308 1E7~ 18 A

24. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) 24, RERARMAOAREE(E)

(i)  Fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring () EMEELARENEEEHERHELR
basis BE

Fair value Value technique and  Significant unobservable

Financial assets Fair value hierarchy key inputs input
a4 FERWR

SRMEE LRRE REER EZmANE EXTUHRBABE
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025%6A30H  2024%12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETFT
(unaudited) (audited)
€33 1)) (&)

Financial assets at FVTOCI
BORBEEHAREMZAKEHEMNEE

Unlisted equity security 3,000 13,400 Level 3 Market approach Discount for lack on
marketability
I FHRAE 5 F=R TiEE Rz MG REILTE
Financial assets at FVTPL
BORREHAREHEREE
Listed equity security 3,291 3,555  Level 1 Quoted price in Not applicable
an active market
THRARES F—R RERBTSRE NEH
Put option on unlisted equity security 6,506 6,506 Level 3 Market approach Discount for lack on
marketability
I ETRAE SR HE F=R TiEE Bz mEREILTE
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24,

25.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

(i)  Fair value of the Group’ s financial assets and financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value on a recurring basis and whose carrying amounts are
not reasonable approximation of fair value

24, RERARMOAREE(R)

(i) FREAXBEFTHERULAREHELR
BEELFLARENSEELEZEME

EREMARNHLAAEE

30 June 2025 31 December 2024
20256A30H 2024%12A31H
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE LREE REE AnEE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERRTR ARRTR AREFT AREFL
(unaudited) (unaudited) (audited) (audited)
(RiEER) (REEER) (&) (s &st)
Financial assets SREE
Receivables under service concession  RIEEFFELTHET
arrangements FENRIA 19,566,179 20,468,457 20,739,599 22,007,453
Financial liabilities tRAE
Bank and other borrowings (fixed rate) ~ $R{7REMEZ (EE) (2,535,722) (2,543,733) (5,366,466) (5,542,463)

The fair values of receivables under service concession arrangements and bank and
other borrowings as disclosed in the table above are classified under level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy and the fair values are estimated by discounting expected future cash
flows at prevailing interest rate or borrowings rate as at the end of the reporting period.

There was no transfer amongst Levels 1, 2 and 3 in both periods.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following significant related party transactions which were
carried out in the normal course of business as agreed between the parties during the
financial year:

25.

LRABRBENRB R FEELHET BRFRA
RRTREMEROAABEDERAAEEE
RE=M RAEERBREHRBATRABAK
TR ERERATMERAE TN R 5

RAMESREAE R F_RARE=RRALE

g5
RBAEX 5

BB IRE E At 7 PR B A0 B 7 RSN -
AEERTHBRERAATEITOTEEOR—
BREBBRTETHEABYIRS

Six months ended 30 June

#HE6R3081LRMER
2025 2024
20255 20245
RMB’000 RMB'000
AEBTRT ARBFT
Related party Nature of transactions (unaudited) (unaudited)
] ¥) XHLE (RIBER) (REEEET)
Associate of the Company’s intermediate holding KRR RNERA AIRE & A R
Company 7,777 19,795
Production Services EERK
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LELE L e

For the six months ended 30 June 2025
22025567308 1E7~ 18 A

25,

26.

27.

28.

60

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Compensation of Directors and key management personnel

25 WEARS (&)
EERIREREARHM

Six months ended 30 June

#E6A30R1L~ER
2025 2024
20255 2024
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFL
(unaudited) (unaudited)
€3:% Hl (REE=E:)
Wages, salaries and bonus I% HFehita 302,397 19,388
Defined benefit contributions REBAET 98,961 2,844
Others Hith 34,249 481
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 26. BEEIRE
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
202556HA30H 2024%12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFL
(unaudited) (audited)
(REER) (fe&5)
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided i~ BB TEB DI HERAE
the consolidated financial statements in respect of SANBERRABENER
— Additions in construction-in-progress relating to i — g MR aE
service concession arrangement ZHAEENERLIE 338,892 546,795
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 27. REAR

As at 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024 , the Group has no material contingent
liabilities.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Group has evaluated all events that occur after the balance sheet date through the
date when the financial statements were issued to determine if they must be reported.
The Management of the Group determined that there were no reportable subsequent
events to be disclosed.
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Headquarters, Registered Office and Principal Place of Business in Singapore

One Temasek Avenue
#37-02 Millenia Tower
Singapore 039192

Headquarters and Principal Place of Business in China

33F Shanghai Golden Plaza
No. 98 Middle Huaihai Road
Huangpu District

Shanghai 200021

PRC

Place of Business in Hong Kong Registered under Part 16 of the Companies

Ordinance

Room 1601, 16th Floor

Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Company’s Website
www.siicenv.com

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Yuding (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Ji Guanglin

Mr. Wang Xiwang
Mr. Yang Xing

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming (Lead)
Mr. An Hongjun
Mr. Zhong Ming
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Executive Committee
Mr. Zhou Yuding (Chairman)

Mr. Ji Guanglin
Mr. Wang Xiwang

Audit Committee

Mr. An Hongjun (Chairman)
Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming
Mr. Zhong Ming

Nominating Committee

Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming (Chairladly)
Mr. Zhong Ming
Mr. An Hongjun

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Zhong Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Yuding

Dr. Kimmis Pun Kim Ming
Mr. An Hongjun

Risk and Investment Management Committee
Mr. Ji Guanglin (Chairman)

Mr. Zhou Yuding

Mr. Wang Xiwang

Mr. Yang Anyuan
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Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. Lee Wei Hsiung (ACS, ACG)
In. Corp Corporate Services Pte. Ltd.
36 Robinson Road

#20-01 City House

Singapore 068877

Mr. Man Yun Wah (ACG, HKACG)

In. Corp Corporate Services (HK) Limited
Room 1601, 16th Floor

Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

Legal Advisers

As to Singapore law:

ADTLaw LLC (in formal law alliance with Ashurst LLP)
12 Marina Boulevard

#24-01 Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3
Singapore 018982

As to Hong Kong law:
Ashurst Hong Kong
43/F, Jardine House
No. 1 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Singapore:

In. Corp Corporate Services Pte. Ltd.

36 Robinson Road

#20-01 City House
Singapore 068877

BELRRE
FREWEREACS, ACG)
ERCERBERAA
36 Robinson Road
#20-01 City House
Singapore 068877

XBELE(ACG HKACG)
EECERY (BE)BRAF
FHER IR
KZRNH16181601Z

EREm

MARER

ADTLaw LLC(&Ashurst LLPTE = & %% 2 51 R
12 Marina Boulevard

#24-01 Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3
Singapore 018982

BiEEE:

DR EMERA
BERR
FHRBERIHR
BRMAE43E

RiVAFERER

Hinsg :

ERLERBERAF
36 Robinson Road
#20-01 City House
Singapore 068877
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Hong Kong:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Investor Relation

Wonderful Sky Financial Group Limited

9/F, The Center, No. 99 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

enquiry@wsfg.hk

Auditor
Ms. Seah Gek Choo

(appointed since the financial year ended 31 December 2024)

Deloitte & Touche LLP
6 Shenton Way, #33-00
OUE Downtown 2
Singapore 068809

Principal Bankers

DBS Bank

0OCBC

Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Construction Bank

Agricultural Bank of China

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
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